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TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

Meeting Procedure of the 2025 Annual Shareholders' Meeting 

 

 

I. Call the Meeting to Order 

II. Chairperson’s Remarks 

III. Report Items 

IV. Ratification 

V. Discussions 

VI. Elections 

VII. Other Matters 

VIII. Extraordinary Motions 

IX. Adjournment 
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TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

Agenda of the 2025 Annual Shareholders' Meeting 

 

Time: 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, May 28, 2025 

Venue: No. 398, Taoying Rd, Taoyuan District, Taoyuan City, Taiwan (Xiangfu Hall, 

Chuto Plaza Hotel) 

Meeting method: Physical Shareholders’ Meeting 

 

I. Call the Meeting to Order 

II. Chairperson’s Remarks 

III. Report Items: 

(I) 2024 Business Report. 

(II) Audit Committee’s Review Report for 2024. 

(III) 2024 Employees’ Compensation and Directors’ Remuneration Distribution. 

(IV) 2024 Earnings Distribution of Cash Dividends. 

IV. Ratification: 

(I) Adoption of 2024 Business Report and Financial Statements. 

(II) Adoption of the 2024 Earnings Distribution. 

V. Discussions: 

(I) Amendments to the Company's Articles of Incorporation. 

VI. Elections: 

(I) General Re-election of Directors. 

VII. Other Matters: 

(I) Proposal to Lift the Non-Compete Restrictions for the Newly Directors and 

Their Representatives. 

VIII. Extraordinary Motions 

IX. Adjournment 
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Report Items 

Item 1:  

Subject: 2024 Business Report.  

Explanatory Notes: Please refer to Attachment I (Page 11 to 13). 

 

Item 2:  

Subject: Audit Committee’s Review Report for 2024. 

Explanatory Notes: Please refer to Attachment II (Page 14). 

 

Item 3:  

Subject: 2024 Employees’ Compensation and Directors’ Remuneration Distribution. 

Explanatory Notes: 

I. According to Article 19 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation, if 

the Company has gained profits within a fisical year (profit means profit 

before tax, less employee compensation and director remuneration), the 

Company shall set aside not less than 3% of its annual profit as employee 

compensation and not more than 3% as director remuneration. However, 

if there are accumulated losses, the Company shall retain a sufficient 

amount to offset its accumulated losses in advance. 

II. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation and the 

recommendation of the 7th meeting of the 5th term Remuneration 

Committee on February 27, 2025, it is proposed to distribute employees' 

compensation in the amount of NT$114,320 thousand and directors' 

remuneration in the amount of NT$62,340 thousand. Both are paid in 

cash. 
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Item 4:  

Subject: 2024 Earnings Distribution of Cash Dividends. 

Explanatory Notes: 

I. The Company intends to distribute cash dividends by allocating 

NT$627,174,072 from the distributable earnings of the year 2024, with 

a dividend of NT$3 per share. Please refer to Attachment IV (Page 31) 

for the earnings distribution table for the year 2024. 

II. The amount of this cash dividend distribution is calculated up to NT$1, 

and those below NT$1 are rounded down. The total amount of fractional 

cash dividends less than NT$1 shall be accrued to other income of the 

Company. 

III. The proposal of the cash dividend distribution was approved by the 

board of directors, the Chairperson would be authorized to set the record 

date of ex-dividend, distribution date and other relevant matters. If the 

number of shares outstanding of the date of ex-dividend affected by 

shares was bought back by the Company, or a transfer, conversion, 

cancellation were adopted for aforementioned shares, or an exercise of 

employee stock options, or a cancellation of new restricted employee 

shares, or an amendment to relevant laws or regulations, or requests from 

competent authorities, or amendments made in response to other 

objective circumstances, that the proposed ratio of dividend distribution 

is changed and needed to be adjusted, it is proposed that the Chairperson 

be authorized to handle all matters in accordance with the applicable 

laws and regulations. 
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Ratification 

Item 1: Adoption of 2024 Business Report and Financial Statements. (Proposed 

by the Board of Directors) 

Explanatory Notes: 

I. The 2024 Financial Statements (including individual and consolidated 

statements) have been audited and attested by KPMG Taiwan and have 

been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company, together with 

the Business Report. 

II. Please refer to Attachment III (Page 15 to 30) for the aforementioned 

balance sheets, statements of comprehensive income, statements of 

changes in equity, statement of cash flows, and the auditors' review 

report. 

III. Please refer to Attachment I (Page 11 to 13) for the Business Report. 

IV. Please proceed to accept. 

Resolution: 
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Item 2: Adoption of the 2024 Earnings Distribution. (Proposed by the Board of 

Directors) 

Explanatory Notes: 

I. In 2024, the Company achieved a net profit after tax of 

NT$1,713,825,190. After accounting for actuarial gains and losses of 

NT$35,070,737, we have set aside 10% as a legal reserve, totaling 

NT$174,889,593. Additionally, the Company plans to allocate 

NT$627,174,072 from the distributable earnings of 2024 for cash 

dividends, with a dividend of NT$3 per share. 

II. The amount of this cash dividend distribution is calculated up to NT$1, 

and those below NT$1 are rounded down. The total amount of fractional 

cash dividends less than NT$1 shall be accrued to other income of the 

Company. 

III. The dividend distribution ratio is calculated based on the Company's 

current outstanding shares of 209,058,024. If the number of shares 

outstanding of the date of ex-dividend affected by shares was bought 

back by the Company, or a transfer, conversion, cancellation were 

adopted for aforementioned shares, or an exercise of employee stock 

options, or a cancellation of new restricted employee shares, or an 

amendment to relevant laws or regulations, or requests from competent 

authorities, or amendments made in response to other objective 

circumstances, that the proposed ratio of dividend distribution is 

changed and needed to be adjusted, the shareholders' meeting shall 

authorize the Chairperson with full discretion to handle all matters in 

accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. 

IV. It is hereby proposed that the Chairperson to be authorized at the meeting 

of shareholders to set the record date of ex-dividend, distribution date 

and other relevant matters. 

V. Please refer to Attachment IV (Page 31) for the 2024 Earning 

Distribution Table. 

VI. Please proceed to accept. 

Resolution:  
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Discussions  

Item 1: Amendments to the Company's Articles of Incorporation. (Proposed by 

the Board of Directors) 

Explanatory Notes: 

I. In accordance with the Financial Supervisory Commission’s Order No. 

1130385442, dated November 8, 2024, it is hereby proposed to amend 

some provisions of the Company's Articles of Incorporation. 

II. Please refer to Attachment V (Page 32 to 33) for the comparison table of 

the Company’s Articles of Incorporation before and after. 

III. Please proceed to discuss. 

Resolution:  
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Elections 

Item 1: General Re-election of Directors. (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 

Explanatory Notes: 

I. The term of office of the 18th Board of Directors of the Company will 

expire on June 7, 2025, and it is proposed to conduct a re-election at the 

2025 Annual Shareholders' Meeting. 

II. In accordance with Article 13 of the Company's Articles of Association, 

the Audit Committee shall consist of all independent directors. Nine 

directors shall be elected for the 19th term, including three independent 

directors. The election of directors shall be based on a candidate 

nomination system. The list of director candidates has been approved by 

the Board of Directors on February 27, 2025, and the shareholders shall 

elect the candidates from the list of director candidates in accordance with 

Article 192-1 of the Company Act. 

III. The original 18th Board of Directors will be dissolved after the current 

election of new directors. The term of office of the new Board of Directors 

shall be three years from the date of election at the shareholders' meeting 

and shall commence on May 28, 2025 and end on May 27, 2028. 

IV. Please refer to Attachment VI (pages 34 to 37) for the list of director and 

independent director candidates and related information. 

V. Please proceed to elect. 

Election results:  
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Other Matters 

Item 1: Proposal to Lift the Non-Compete Restrictions for the Newly Directors 

and Their Representatives. (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 

Explanatory Notes: 

I. In accordance with Article 209 of the Company Act, a director who does 

anything for himself or on behalf of another person that is within the scope 

of the Company's business, shall explain to the meeting of shareholders 

the essential contents of such an act and secure its approval. 

II. If the Company's newly elected directors and their representatives invest 

in other companies with the same or similar business scope as the 

Company, without prejudice to the Company's interests, it is proposed to 

lift the competition restrictions on new directors and their representatives. 

III. Please refer to Attachment VII (pages 38 to 39) for the details of the 

positions held by the 19th Board of Directors elected at the Annual 

Shareholders' Meeting. 

IV. Please proceed to discuss. 

Resolution: 
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Extraordinary Motions 

 

 

Adjournment 
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Attachment I 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

2024 Business Report 

In 2024, although the recovery momentum in the automotive and mobile phone markets has not yet 

significantly improved, the market has gradually emerged from the impact of uncertain factors in 

2023, including reduced market demand, supply chain shortages, international tensions, and global 

inflation. Through continuous efforts in expanding the high-end application market, cost control, and 

product portfolio optimization, the Company achieved growth in consolidated revenue, product gross 

margin, net profit after tax, and earnings per share in 2024 compared to 2023. Additionally, in line 

with the Company's operational planning, adjustments and transfers of product lines were carried out 

at the Taiwan and Philippines manufacturing facilities. 

 

Looking ahead to 2025, although the overall environment for automotive electronics remains 

challenging, it has gradually emerged from its lowest point. RF modules and metalized ceramic 

substrates are expected to continue growing, while hybrid integrated circuits and CIS imaging 

products are expected to maintain stable shipments. Furthermore, the acquisition of land for the 

Philippines plant and subsequent capacity expansion will support the Company’s future business 

growth and operational expansion. 

 

I. 2024 Business overview 

(I) 2024 Business plan implementation results 

Unit: NT$ thousands 

Item 

Financial Information (Note) 
Difference 

2024 2023 

Amount % Amount % Amount % 

Net Operating 

Revenue 
12,090,994 100 11,584,909 100 506,085 4 

Realized Gross 

Profit 
3,325,898 27 2,787,536 24 538,362 19 

Operating Expenses 1,583,037 13 1,369,289 12 213,748 16 

Operating Profit 1,742,861 14 1,418,247 12 324,614 23 

Non-Operating 

Income and 

Expenses 

179,572 2 (23,195)  - 202,767 874 

Profit Before Tax 1,922,433 16 1,395,052 12 527,381 38 

Net Profit After Tax 1,718,449 14 1,150,513 10 567,936 49 

Note：Audited and Certified by an Accountant 

(II) Financial Income and Expenditure and Profitability Analysis 

The consolidated net operating revenue in 2024 reached NT$12,090,994 thousand, 

compared to NT$11,584,909 thousand in 2023, reflecting an increase of NT$506,085 

thousand, a 4% growth. 
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The product gross margin for 2024 was 27%, up from 24% in 2023, showing a 3% increase. 

The consolidated net profit after tax for 2024 was NT$1,718,449 thousand, compared to 

NT$1,150,513 thousand in 2023, an increase of NT$567,936 thousand, a 49% growth. 

The earnings per share (EPS) after tax for 2024 was NT$8.2, compared to NT$5.5 in 2023, 

representing an increase of NT$2.7.  

(III) Budget Implementation 

The Company has not made any financial projections for 2024 and therefore does not need 

to disclose its budgetary performance. 

(IV) Research and Development 

With the efforts of our R&D team, the Company has achieved good results in the 

development of image sensor packaging technology for automotive applications, high 

frequency communication modules, as well as high power semiconductor packaging and 

ceramic circuit boards in 2024, which contributes to the Company's revenue and profit 

growth. 

II. 2025 Business Plan 

(I) Operating Policies 

1.Continuously improve the quality of the products and services to enhance customer 

satisfaction. 

2.Continuously improve manufacturing processes, yield rate and phase in automation to 

lower production costs. 

3.To strengthen the division of labor between the plants in Taiwan and the Philippines to 

improve production flexibility and cost competitiveness. 

4.Deepen collaboration with suppliers to establish long-term partnerships. 

5.Invest in the development of new materials, equipment, and process technologies 

applications to provide differentiated products and services. 

6.To integrate process technologies of substrates manufacturing, packaging and testing 

to provide customers with a complete service in a one-time purchase. 

(II) Sales Volume Forecast and its Basis 

The main growth momentum in 2025 shall come from: 

1.The trend of demand for self-driving functions in automobiles is bouncing back 

gradually after the economic condition has improved in the short run. 

2.Demand for high-power LEDs and high-power semiconductors, driven by trends in 

clean energy and electric vehicles, will also continue to boost the growth of ceramic 

circuit boards and module assembly services. 

3.The widespread adoption of artificial intelligence applications, which will significantly 

increase the demand for data centers and transmission, driving growth in optical 

communication-related packaging. 

(III) Important Production and Sales Policies 

1.In response to global tariffs and trade protectionism, the company will continue to 

adjust its supply chain and establish strategic partnerships with key suppliers to 

stabilize material sources and ensure a flexible supply chain, thereby enhancing 
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shipping momentum. 

2.The company will continue to expand its overseas production and sales network, and 

develop strategies for flexible production and distribution planning to reduce 

geopolitical and operational risks, effectively improving operational efficiency.  

III. Future Development Strategy  

(I) To establish the Medium-to-Long-Term Business Strategies: 

We focus on the growth industries of communications, automotive, energy and biomedical 

to develop high value-added products. 

(II) To strengthen the division of labor between the plants in Taiwan and the Philippines: 

Optimize the capacity allocation of the New Taipei, Taoyuan, and Chupei plants to improve 

production scale and efficiency, we will continue to increase the number of products 

produced in the Philippines and strengthen the division of labor to improve the flexibility 

and efficiency of serving customers. 

(III) To develop Long-Term Partnerships: 

We are committed to developing strategic customers across the globe and building long-term 

partnerships with suppliers to explore new growth opportunities through collaboration. 

(IV) To organize Management and Intergroup Cooperation: 

We strengthen the cooperation between production and sales of each business unit, share 

resources and integrate information systems among the group, in order to continuously 

improve quality and production processes, enhance cost competitiveness, improve 

operational efficiency and build a responsible corporate culture. 

IV. The Impact of External Competitive Environment, Legal Regulations, and Overall Business 

Environment 

Facing with the increasing demands and emphasis on ESG from regulatory authorities, suppliers, 

and customers, as well as the global push for net-zero carbon emissions, coupled with the 

implementation of Taiwan’s "Climate Change Response Act" and the enforcement of carbon tax, 

the costs of global energy, raw materials, and labor are expected to continue rising. Under this 

pressure, the Company will adhere to the principles of corporate governance and pursue 

sustainable development. The Company will focus on social, environmental, and stakeholder 

concerns to mitigate the impact of internal and external environmental pressures on the business. 

 

We wish to thank all our shareholders for your attendance, long-term support and encouragement. We 

wish you all health, peace, and happiness. 

 

 

Tie-Min Chen, Chairperson of the Board 

 

 

Shao-Pin Ru, CEO 

 

 

Chia-Li Huang, Chief Accounting Officer 
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Attachment II 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

Audit Committee’s Review Report 

Hereby 

The Board of Directors has prepared and submitted the 2024 financial statements 

(including individual and consolidated statements) of the Company, which have been 

audited and certified as complete by CPAs I-Wen Wang and Yu-Ting Hsin from KPMG 

Taiwan. We have audited the aforesaid financial statements, business report and 

earnings distribution and found that there are no discrepancies. We hereby respectfully 

prepare and present this report in accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities and 

Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act for your review. 

 

 

To: 

 

2025 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting 

 

 

 

 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

 

Convener of the Audit Committee: Chin-Tsai Chen 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: February 27, 2025 
 



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Tong Hsing Electronic Industries, Ltd.:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tong Hsing Electronic Industries, Ltd.(“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the statement of comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with The
Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the parent company only financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we judged shall be presented in the
auditors’ report as follows:

Attachment III 
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1. Valuation of inventories

Please refer to Note (4)(g) “Inventories” of the parent company only financial statements for accounting
policies; Note (5)(a) “Valuation of inventories”for accounting assumptions and estimation uncertainty of
inventories valuation. Information regarding inventories and related expenses are shown in Note (6)(f) of the
parent company only financial statements.

Description of key audit matter:

Due to the impact of product life cycle and industrial competition in electronics industry, the price variability
for the inventories of the Company is expected. Therefore, the inventories valuation is one of the key audit
matters in our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included assessing the reasonableness of the Company’s policies for
allowance for inventories valuation and obsolescence losses, and whether they are in accordance with the
related standards. In addition, our audit procedures included obtaining the detailed calculations for the loss
allowance of inventories to verify whether it is consistent with the account record; as well as testing the
interval classification of the inventory aging report and the relevant value of the calculation table of the lower
of the cost, and the net realizable value, to assess the reasonableness of the management’s estimates on the
net realizable value for inventories.

2. Impairment evaluation of intangible assets

Please refer to Note (4)(m) “intangible assets” and Note (4)(n) “Impairment of non-financial assets”
of the parent company only financial statements for the accounting policies related to the impairment of
intangible assets; Note (5)(b) for the accounting estimations and assumptions uncertainty for goodwill
impairment; Note (6)(k) “intangible assets ” for details related to impairment of intangible assets.

Description of key audit matter:

The Company fully acquired KINGPAK Technology Inc. by stock exchange on June 19, 2020 (the effective
date). The reference date of the merger is June 30, 2022. Management periodically assesses if there is any
indication of impairment. The amounts of investments are significant, and assessing intangible assets such as
goodwill involves complex calculations. Thus, the impairment evaluation of intangible assets is one of the
most important evaluations in performing our audit procedures of the Company's financial statements.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included the following:

 Understand and assess the cash-generating unit that the management has identified to impair and any
indication of impairment, the reasonableness of the management’ s method of measuring the
recoverable amount, and the accuracy of management’s past forecasts.

 Evaluate the professional competence, objectivity, experience, and valuation of external professionals.

 Assess the appropriateness and correctness of the variables from the external professional’s appraisal
pertaining to the testing of the impairment of the cash-generating unit.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent Company Only
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial
statements in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent
company only financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease its operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Company’
s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic
of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the parent company only financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Notes to Readers

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the  financial position, financial performance
and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of
any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent company only financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying parent company only financial statements are the English translation of
the Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of
the English and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and parent company only financial statements, the Chinese version
shall prevail.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in
other entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on this parent company only
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Wang, I-Wen and Hsin,
Yu-Ting.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 27, 2025
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(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese.)
TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD.

Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, except for Earnings Per Share)

2024 2023

Amount % Amount %

4000 Sales revenue $ 12,196,576  101  11,776,971  102

4170 Less: sales returns and allowances 105,582 1 192,062 2

4100 Net operating revenues (notes (6)(t) and (7))  12,090,994  100  11,584,909  100

5110 Operating costs (notes (6)(f), (6)(k), (6)(p), (7) and (12))  8,773,992  73  8,872,764  77

5900 Gross profit  3,317,002  27  2,712,145  23

6000 Operating expenses: (notes (6)(e), (6)(k), (6)(p), (7) and (12))

6100 Selling expenses 181,942 1 238,094 2

6200 Administrative expenses 832,776 7 670,331 6

6300 Research and development expenses 506,418 4 402,816 3

6450 Expected credit impairment reversal gains (1,635)  - (33)  -

 1,519,501  12  1,311,208  11

6900 Net operating income  1,797,501  15  1,400,937  12

Non-operating income and expenses:

7100 Interest income 203,951 2 192,505 2

7190 Other income (notes (6)(m), (7) and (10)) 91,771 1 234,184 2

7230 Foreign exchange gains (losses), net (note (6)(w)) 423,425 3 7,781  -

7235 Net gains (losses) on financial assets (liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss  (403,254)  (3) (54,355)  -

7070 Share of (loss) profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using
equity method (95,870)  (1) 39,925  -

7510 Finance cost interest expense  (108,875)  (1)  (102,880)  (1)

7590 Miscellaneous disbursements (notes (6)(i) and (6)(u)) (7,013)  -  (336,125)  (3)

104,135 1 (18,965)  -

7900 Profit before tax  1,901,636  16  1,381,972  12

7950 Less: income tax expenses (note (6)(q)) 187,811 2 231,459 2

Net profit  1,713,825  14  1,150,513  10

Other comprehensive income: (notes (6)(p) and (6)(q))

Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss

8311 Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 30,113  - 30,427  -

8316 Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (10,499)  - (583)  -

8330 Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
accounted for using equity method 13,726  - (7,302)  -

8349 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss (8,769)  - (4,625)  -

24,571  - 17,917  -

Components of other comprehensive income that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

8361 Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements 128,326 1 (1,487)  -

8399 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (20,918)  - 50  -

107,408 1 (1,437)  -

Other comprehensive income, net 131,979 1 16,480  -

8500 Comprehensive income $ 1,845,804  15  1,166,993  10

Earnings per share (note (6)(s))

9750 Basic earnings per share (NTD) $ 8.20 5.50

9850 Diluted earnings per share (NTD) $ 8.16 5.48

- 20 -



(E
n

gl
is

h 
T

ra
ns

la
ti

on
 o

f 
P

ar
en

t C
om

pa
n

y 
O

nl
y 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 O

ri
gi

n
al

ly
 I

ss
ue

d
 in

 C
h

in
es

e.
)

T
O

N
G

 H
S

IN
G

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IE
S,

 L
T

D
.

St
at

em
en

ts
 o

f 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 E
q

ui
ty

F
or

 t
h

e 
ye

ar
s 

en
d

ed
 D

ec
em

b
er

 3
1,

 2
02

4 
an

d
 2

02
3

(E
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 T
ho

us
an

ds
 o

f 
N

ew
 T

ai
w

an
 D

ol
la

rs
)

O
th

er
 e

q
u

it
y

R
et

ai
ne

d 
ea

rn
in

gs

 E
xc

ha
n

ge
di

ff
er

en
ce

s 
on

tr
an

sl
at

io
n 

of

U
n

re
al

iz
ed

 g
ai

ns
(l

os
se

s)
 f

ro
m

fi
n

an
ci

al
 a

ss
et

s
m

ea
su

re
d

 a
t 

fa
ir

va
lu

e 
th

ro
ug

h

O
rd

in
ar

y
sh

ar
es

C
ap

it
al

su
rp

lu
s

L
eg

al
re

se
rv

e
Sp

ec
ia

l
re

se
rv

e
U

n
ap

pr
op

ri
at

ed
ea

rn
in

gs
T

ot
al

fo
re

ig
n

fi
na

n
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

ot
he

r
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

in
co

m
e

T
ot

al
T

ot
al

eq
ui

ty
B

al
an

ce
 o

n 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
02

3
$ 

1,
60

8,
13

9
 

15
,1

15
,8

76
 

1,
82

9,
34

5
16

9,
40

8
5,

82
0,

42
6

7,
81

9,
17

9
9,

38
6

(2
8,

58
2)

(1
9,

19
6)

 
24

,5
23

,9
98

N
et

 p
ro

fi
t f

or
 th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

3
-

-
-

-
1,

15
0,

51
3

1,
15

0,
51

3
-

-
-

 
1,

15
0,

51
3

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
3

-
-

-
-

18
,5

00
18

,5
00

(1
,4

37
)

(5
83

)
(2

,0
20

)
16

,4
80

T
ot

al
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
3

-
-

-
-

1,
16

9,
01

3
1,

16
9,

01
3

(1
,4

37
)

(5
83

)
(2

,0
20

) 
1,

16
6,

99
3

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

n 
an

d 
di

st
ri

bu
tio

n 
of

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
:

L
eg

al
 r

es
er

ve
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d

-
-

32
0,

73
6

-
(3

20
,7

36
)

-
-

-
-

-

C
as

h 
di

vi
de

nd
s 

of
 o

rd
in

ar
y 

sh
ar

es
-

-
-

-
(1

,2
49

,5
36

) 
(1

,2
49

,5
36

)
-

-
-

 
(1

,2
49

,5
36

)

St
oc

k 
di

vi
de

nd
s 

of
 o

rd
in

ar
y 

sh
ar

es
48

2,
44

2
-

-
-

(4
82

,4
42

)
(4

82
,4

42
)

-
-

-
-

B
al

an
ce

 o
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

3
 

2,
09

0,
58

1
 

15
,1

15
,8

76
 

2,
15

0,
08

1
16

9,
40

8
4,

93
6,

72
5

7,
25

6,
21

4
7,

94
9

(2
9,

16
5)

(2
1,

21
6)

 
24

,4
41

,4
55

N
et

 p
ro

fi
t f

or
 th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

4
-

-
-

-
1,

71
3,

82
5

1,
71

3,
82

5
-

-
-

 
1,

71
3,

82
5

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
4

-
-

-
-

35
,0

70
35

,0
70

10
7,

40
8

(1
0,

49
9)

96
,9

09
13

1,
97

9

T
ot

al
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
4

-
-

-
-

1,
74

8,
89

5
1,

74
8,

89
5

10
7,

40
8

(1
0,

49
9)

96
,9

09
 

1,
84

5,
80

4

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

n 
an

d 
di

st
ri

bu
tio

n 
of

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
:

L
eg

al
 r

es
er

ve
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d

-
-

11
6,

90
1

-
(1

16
,9

01
)

-
-

-
-

-
C

as
h 

di
vi

de
nd

s 
of

 o
rd

in
ar

y 
sh

ar
es

-
-

-
-

(5
01

,7
39

)
(5

01
,7

39
)

-
-

-
 

(5
01

,7
39

)

O
th

er
-

1,
76

5
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

1,
76

5

B
al

an
ce

 o
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

4
$ 

2,
09

0,
58

1
 

15
,1

17
,6

41
 

2,
26

6,
98

2
16

9,
40

8
6,

06
6,

98
0

8,
50

3,
37

0
11

5,
35

7
(3

9,
66

4)
75

,6
93

 
25

,7
87

,2
85

- 21 -



(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese.)
TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2024 2023

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Profit before tax $ 1,901,636 1,381,972
Adjustments:

Adjustments to reconcile profit:
Depreciation expenses 1,464,018 1,113,034
Amortization expenses 129,099 130,505
Expected credit impairment reversal gains (1,635) (33)
Net losses on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 403,254 54,355
Interest expense 108,875 102,880
Interest income (203,951) (192,505)
Dividend income (10,499) (10,499)
Share of loss (profit) of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method 95,870 (39,925)
Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment (42) (891)
Impairment loss on non-financial assets - 336,113
Unrealized (gain) loss on foreign exchange (220,572) 10,108
Others 12,360 (9,719)

Total adjustments to reconcile profit 1,776,777 1,493,423
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in current financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (2,975,394) (172,334)
Increase in contract assets (10,531) (38,342)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (19,067) 82,718
(Increase) decrease in other receivables (3,101) 52,012
Decrease in inventories 36,026 229,893
Decrease in prepayments 26,058 16,455
Decrease (increase) in other current assets 8,084 (9,072)
Increase in net defined benefit assets (7,555) -
(Decrease) increase in current contract liabilities (96,765) 128,869
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable 55,824 (145,997)
Increase (decrease) in other payables 51,291 (261,790)
(Decrease) increase in provisions and other current liabilities (83,460) 41,376
Decrease in net deferred benefit liabilities (2,803) (8,540)

(3,021,393) (84,752)
Cash inflow generated from operations 657,020 2,790,643

Interest received 154,677 134,193
Dividends received 10,499 10,499
Interest paid (83,555) (79,206)
Income taxes paid (121,694) (631,430)

Net cash flows from operating activities 616,947 2,224,699
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:

Acquisition of non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (102,935) (88,242)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 105,564 370,743
Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost (250,455) (1,636,124)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortized cost - 229,480
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (1,081,780) (2,614,283)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 60,426 37,872
Decrease in refundable deposits 3,357 9,353
Acquisition of intangible assets (25,580) (38,284)
Decrease in other financial assets 405 -

Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,290,998) (3,729,485)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,485,000 -
Repayments of long-term borrowings (1,773,095) -
Increase in guarantee deposits received - 156
Payment of lease liabilities (26,644) (24,766)
Cash dividends paid (501,739) (1,249,536)

Net cash flows used in financing activities (816,478) (1,274,146)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,490,529) (2,778,932)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3,665,739 6,444,671
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 2,175,210 3,665,739

- 22 -



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Tong Hsing Electronic Industries, Ltd.:

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tong Hsing Electronic Industries, Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated  financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards (“IASs”), Interpretations developed by
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“ IFRIC” ) or the former Standing
Interpretations Committee (“SIC”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission
of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we judged shall be presented in the auditors’
report as follows:

1. Valuation of inventories

Please refer to Note (4)(h) “Inventories” of the consolidated financial statements for accounting policies;
Note (5)(a) “Valuation of inventories”  for accounting assumptions and estimation uncertainty of
inventories valuation. Information regarding inventories and related expenses are shown in Note (6)(f) of the
consolidated financial statements.
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Description of key audit matter:

Due to the impact of product life cycle and industrial competition in electronics industry, the price variability
for the inventories of the Group is expected. Therefore, the inventories valuation is one of the key audit
matters in our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s policies for allowance
for inventories valuation and obsolescence losses, and whether they are in accordance with the related
standards. In addition, our audit procedures included obtaining the detailed calculations for the loss allowance
of inventories to verify whether it is consistent with the account record; as well as testing the interval
classification of the inventory aging report and the relevant value of the calculation table of the lower of the
cost, and the net realizable value, to assess the reasonableness of the management’s estimates on the net
realizable value for inventories.

2. Impairment evaluation of intangible assets

Please refer to Note (4)(m) “intangible assets” and Note (4)(n) “Impairment of non-financial assets”
of the consolidated financial statements for the accounting policies related to the impairment of  intangible
assets; Note (5)(b) for the accounting estimations and assumptions uncertainty for goodwill impairment; Note
(6)(j) “intangible assets” for details related to impairment of intangible assets.

Description of key audit matter:

The Group fully acquired KINGPAK Technology Inc. by stock exchange on June 19, 2020 (the effective
date). The reference date of the merger is June 30, 2022. Management periodically assesses if there is any
indication of impairment. The amounts of investments are significant, and assessing intangible assets such as
goodwill involves complex calculations. Thus, the impairment evaluation of intangible assets is one of the
most important evaluations in performing our audit procedures of the Group's financial statements.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included the following:

 Understand and assess the cash-generating unit that the management has identified to impair and any
indication of impairment, the reasonableness of the management's method of measuring the recoverable
amount, and the accuracy of management's past forecasts.

 Evaluate the professional competence, objectivity, experience, and valuation of external professionals.

 Assess the appropriateness and correctness of the variables from the external professional’s appraisal
pertaining to the testing of the impairment of the cash-generating unit.
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Other Matter

Tong Hsing Electronic Industries, Ltd. has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the
IFRSs, IASs, IFRC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the
Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease its
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s and its subsidiaries’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and
not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the
Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
English and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall
prevail.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group’s to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group’s to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Wang, I-Wen and Hsin,
Yu-Ting.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 27, 2025

- 26 -



(E
n

gl
is

h
 T

ra
n

sl
at

io
n 

of
 C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 O
ri

gi
n

al
ly

 I
ss

u
ed

 in
 C

hi
ne

se
.)

T
O

N
G

 H
S

IN
G

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 I

N
D

U
ST

R
IE

S,
 L

T
D

. A
N

D
 S

U
B

SI
D

IA
R

IE
S

C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 B
al

an
ce

 S
he

et
s

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

4 
an

d
 2

02
3

(E
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 T
ho

us
an

ds
 o

f
N

ew
 T

ai
w

an
 D

ol
la

rs
)

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

4
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
3

A
ss

et
s

A
m

ou
nt

%
A

m
ou

n
t

%

C
ur

re
n

t a
ss

et
s:

11
00

C
as

h 
an

d 
ca

sh
 e

qu
iv

al
en

ts
 (

no
te

 (
6)

(a
))

$
3,

00
7,

90
6 

 
9

4,
74

6,
86

7 
 

14

11
10

C
ur

re
nt

 f
in

an
ci

al
 a

ss
et

s 
at

 f
ai

r 
va

lu
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
of

it 
or

 lo
ss

 (n
ot

e 
(6

)(
b)

)
3,

11
7,

88
8 

 
9

39
1,

32
1 

 
1

11
36

C
ur

re
nt

 f
in

an
ci

al
 a

ss
et

s 
at

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 c

os
t (

no
te

 (
6)

(d
))

87
6,

42
7 

 
3

-
 

-

11
70

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ab
le

, n
et

 (
no

te
 (

6)
(e

))
2,

09
5,

27
9 

 
6

2,
07

4,
57

7 
 

7

12
00

O
th

er
 r

ec
ei

va
bl

es
82

,7
23

  
-

78
,8

06
  

-

13
10

In
ve

nt
or

ie
s 

(n
ot

e 
(6

)(
f)

)
1,

73
2,

86
2 

 
5

1,
59

2,
69

9 
 

5

14
10

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
ts

71
,6

82
  

-
95

,5
05

  
-

14
61

N
on

-c
ur

re
nt

 a
ss

et
s 

he
ld

 f
or

 s
al

e 
(n

ot
e 

(6
)(

g)
)

39
,4

58
  

-
-

 
-

14
70

O
th

er
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

ss
et

s 
(n

ot
e 

(6
)(

s)
)

12
8,

27
0 

 
-

12
5,

82
3 

 
-

14
76

O
th

er
 c

ur
re

nt
 f

in
an

ci
al

 a
ss

et
s 

(n
ot

e 
(8

))
35

,4
48

 
-

32
,0

41
 

-

11
,1

87
,9

43
 

32
9,

13
7,

63
9

 
27

N
on

-c
ur

re
n

t 
as

se
ts

:

15
10

N
on

-c
ur

re
nt

 fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s 

at
 f

ai
r 

va
lu

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

of
it 

or
 lo

ss
 (

no
te

 (
6)

(b
))

57
1,

87
0 

 
2

68
6,

25
6 

 
2

15
17

N
on

-c
ur

re
nt

 fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s 

at
 f

ai
r 

va
lu

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
ot

he
r 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
in

co
m

e 
(n

ot
e 

(6
)(

c)
)

31
0,

31
6 

 
1

32
0,

81
5 

 
1

15
35

N
on

-c
ur

re
nt

 f
in

an
ci

al
 a

ss
et

s 
at

 a
m

or
ti

ze
d 

co
st

 (
no

te
 (

6)
(d

))
2,

46
7,

10
8 

 
7

2,
84

3,
33

1 
 

8

16
00

Pr
op

er
ty

, p
la

nt
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t (
no

te
s 

(6
)(

h)
, (

7)
 a

nd
 (

8)
)

11
,3

58
,4

70
  

33
11

,8
76

,4
85

  
36

17
55

R
ig

ht
-o

f-
us

e 
as

se
ts

 (
no

te
 (

6)
(i

))
16

5,
42

7 
 

-
14

6,
16

5 
 

-

17
60

In
ve

st
m

en
t p

ro
pe

rt
y,

 n
et

28
,6

48
  

-
28

,6
48

  
-

17
80

In
ta

ng
ib

le
 a

ss
et

s 
(n

ot
e 

(6
)(

j)
)

8,
18

6,
49

1 
 

24
8,

27
5,

65
7 

 
25

18
40

D
ef

er
re

d 
ta

x 
as

se
ts

 (
no

te
 (

6)
(p

))
29

8,
82

0 
 

1
29

9,
00

7 
 

1

19
00

O
th

er
 n

on
-c

ur
re

nt
 a

ss
et

s
27

,9
31

  
-

43
,0

22
  

-

19
75

N
on

-c
ur

re
nt

 n
et

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

as
se

ts
 (

no
te

 (
6)

(o
))

7,
55

5 
 

-
-

 
-

19
80

O
th

er
 n

on
-c

ur
re

nt
 f

in
an

ci
al

 a
ss

et
s 

(n
ot

e 
(8

))
5,

00
0

 
-

5,
40

5
 

-

23
,4

27
,6

36
 

68
24

,5
24

,7
91

 
73

T
ot

al
 a

ss
et

s
$ 

34
,6

15
,5

79
 

10
0

33
,6

62
,4

30
 

10
0

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

4
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
3

L
ia

b
ili

ti
es

 a
n

d 
E

q
u

it
y

A
m

ou
n

t
%

A
m

ou
n

t
%

C
ur

re
n

t l
ia

b
ili

ti
es

:

21
20

C
ur

re
nt

 f
in

an
ci

al
 li

ab
ili

tie
s 

at
 f

ai
r 

va
lu

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

of
it 

or
 lo

ss
 (

no
te

 (
6)

(b
))

 
$

29
,4

54
  

-
78

9 
 

-

21
30

C
ur

re
nt

 c
on

tr
ac

t l
ia

bi
lit

ie
s 

(n
ot

e 
(6

)(
s)

)
90

,4
65

  
-

18
7,

23
0 

 
1

21
70

N
ot

es
 a

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

pa
ya

bl
e

78
7,

98
4 

 
2

72
6,

11
5 

 
2

22
00

O
th

er
 p

ay
ab

le
s 

(n
ot

es
 (

6)
(m

) 
an

d 
(7

))
1,

86
6,

27
6 

 
5

2,
00

5,
18

7 
 

5

22
30

C
ur

re
nt

 ta
x 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s
26

4,
10

0 
 

1
22

3,
60

5 
 

1

22
50

C
ur

re
nt

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s

21
7,

61
2 

 
1

27
5,

50
2 

 
1

22
80

C
ur

re
nt

 le
as

e 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

(n
ot

e 
(6

)(
n)

)
26

,3
99

  
-

26
,6

14
  

-

23
00

O
th

er
 c

ur
re

nt
 li

ab
ili

tie
s

14
,4

25
  

-
39

,9
95

  
-

23
22

L
on

g-
te

rm
 b

or
ro

w
in

gs
, c

ur
re

nt
 p

or
ti

on
 (

no
te

 (
6)

(l
))

1,
59

0,
85

5
 

5
-

 
-

4,
88

7,
57

0
 

14
3,

48
5,

03
7

 
10

N
on

-c
u

rr
en

t 
li

ab
ili

ti
es

:

25
40

L
on

g-
te

rm
 b

or
ro

w
in

gs
 (

no
te

 (
6)

(l
))

3,
43

1,
59

7 
 

10
5,

22
7,

81
7 

 
16

25
70

D
ef

er
re

d 
ta

x 
li

ab
il

iti
es

 (
no

te
 (

6)
(p

))
22

6,
70

8 
 

1
16

8,
70

3 
 

1

25
80

N
on

-c
ur

re
nt

 le
as

e 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

(n
ot

e 
(6

)(
n)

)
13

6,
17

4 
 

-
12

1,
53

7 
 

-

26
00

O
th

er
 n

on
-c

ur
re

nt
 li

ab
ili

tie
s 

(n
ot

e 
(6

)(
l)

)
78

,9
39

  
-

14
9,

72
2 

 
-

26
40

N
on

-c
ur

re
nt

 n
et

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
(n

ot
e 

(6
)(

o)
)

21
,7

32
 

-
68

,1
59

 
-

3,
89

5,
15

0
 

11
5,

73
5,

93
8

 
17

T
ot

al
 li

ab
il

it
ie

s
8,

78
2,

72
0

 
25

9,
22

0,
97

5
 

27

E
q

ui
ty

:

E
q

ui
ty

 a
tt

ri
b

ut
ab

le
 t

o 
ow

n
er

s 
of

 p
ar

en
t:

 (
n

ot
e 

(6
)(

q)
)

31
00

O
rd

in
ar

y 
sh

ar
es

2,
09

0,
58

1 
 

6
2,

09
0,

58
1 

 
6

32
00

C
ap

it
al

 s
ur

pl
us

15
,1

17
,6

41
  

44
15

,1
15

,8
76

  
45

33
10

L
eg

al
 r

es
er

ve
2,

26
6,

98
2 

 
7

2,
15

0,
08

1 
 

6

33
20

S
pe

ci
al

 r
es

er
ve

16
9,

40
8 

 
-

16
9,

40
8 

 
1

33
50

U
na

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

6,
06

6,
98

0 
 

18
4,

93
6,

72
5 

 
15

34
00

O
th

er
 e

qu
ity

75
,6

93
 

-
(2

1,
21

6)
 

-

  
  

  
  

T
ot

al
 e

q
ui

ty
 a

tt
ri

b
ut

ab
le

 t
o 

ow
n

er
s 

of
 p

ar
en

t:
25

,7
87

,2
85

 
75

24
,4

41
,4

55
 

73

36
X

X
N

on
-c

on
tr

ol
lin

g 
in

te
re

st
s

45
,5

74
 

-
-

 
-

T
ot

al
 e

qu
it

y
25

,8
32

,8
59

 
75

24
,4

41
,4

55
 

73

T
ot

al
 li

ab
il

it
ie

s 
an

d 
eq

ui
ty

$ 
34

,6
15

,5
79

 
10

0
33

,6
62

,4
30

 
10

0

- 27 -



(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese.)
TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, except for Earnings Per Share)

2024 2023

Amount % Amount %

4000 Sales revenue $ 12,196,576  101  11,776,971  102

4170 Less: sales returns and allowances 105,582 1 192,062 2

4100 Net operating revenues (notes (6)(s) and (14))  12,090,994  100  11,584,909  100

5110 Operating costs (notes (6)(f), (6)(o) and (12))  8,765,096  73  8,797,373  76

5900 Gross profit  3,325,898  27  2,787,536  24

6000 Operating expenses (notes (6)(e), (6)(o), (7) and (12)):

6100 Selling expenses 188,139 2 243,803 2

6200 Administrative expenses 884,950 7 722,057 6

6300 Research and development expenses 511,586 4 402,816 4

6450 Expected credit impairment losses (reversal gains) (1,638)  - 613 -

 1,583,037  13  1,369,289  12

6900 Net operating income  1,742,861  14  1,418,247  12

Non-operating income and expenses:

7100 Interest income 235,275 2 221,499 2

7190 Other income (notes (6)(l) and (10)) 92,085 1 246,264 2

7230 Foreign exchange gains (losses), net (note (6)(v)) 379,527 3 7,311  -

7235 Net gains (losses) on financial assets (liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss  (403,254)  (3) (54,355)  -

7510 Finance cost interest expense  (109,375)  (1)  (102,880)  (1)

7590 Miscellaneous disbursements (notes (6)(h) and (6)(t)) (14,686)  -  (341,034)  (3)

179,572 2 (23,195)  -

7900 Profit before tax  1,922,433  16  1,395,052  12

7950 Less: income tax expenses (note (6)(p)) 203,984 2 244,539 2

Net profit  1,718,449  14  1,150,513  10

Other comprehensive income: (note (6)(p))

Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

8311 Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 43,839  - 23,125  -

8316 Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (10,499)  - (583)  -

8349 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss (8,769)  - (4,625)  -

Total components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss 24,571  - 17,917  -

Components of other comprehensive income that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss

8361 Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements 128,051 1 (1,487)  -

8399 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss (20,918)  - 50  -

Total components of other comprehensive income that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss 107,133 1 (1,437)  -

Other comprehensive income, net 131,704 1 16,480  -

8500 Comprehensive income $ 1,850,153  15  1,166,993  10

8600 Profit attributable to:

8610      Owners of parent $ 1,713,825  14  1,150,513  10

8620      Non-controlling interests 4,624  - -  -

$ 1,718,449  14  1,150,513  10

8700 Comprehensive income attributable to:

8710 Owners of parent $ 1,845,804  15  1,166,993  10

8720 Non-controlling interests 4,349  - -  -

$ 1,850,153  15  1,166,993  10

Earnings per share (note (6)(r))

9750 Basic earnings per share (NTD) $ 8.20 5.50

9850 Diluted earnings per share (NTD) $ 8.16 5.48
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese.)
TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2024 2023

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Profit before tax $ 1,922,433 1,395,052
Adjustments:

Adjustments to reconcile profit:
Depreciation expenses 1,607,691 1,286,611
Amortization expenses 129,199 130,505
Expected credit impairment (reversal gains) losses (1,638) 613
Net losses on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 403,254 54,355
Interest expense 109,375 102,880
Interest income (235,275) (221,499)
Dividend income (10,499) (10,499)
Losses (gains) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 762 (862)
Impairment loss on non-financial assets - 336,113
Unrealized (gain) loss on foreign exchange (181,284) 10,108
Others 21,365 (9,315)

Total adjustments to reconcile profit 1,842,950 1,679,010
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in current financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (2,975,394) (172,334)
Increase in contract assets (10,531) (38,342)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (19,067) 82,718
Decrease in other receivables 2,201 13,094
(Increase) decrease in inventories (140,163) 201,535
Decrease in prepayments 24,477 13,407
Decrease (increase) in other current assets 8,084 (9,072)
Increase in net defined benefit assets (7,555) -
(Decrease) increase in current contract liabilities (96,765) 128,869
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable 61,869 (75,940)
Increase (decrease) in other payables 69,725 (264,252)
(Decrease) increase in provisions and other current liabilities (83,460) 41,376
Decrease in net defined benefit liabilities (2,588) (13,175)

(3,169,167) (92,116)
Cash inflow generated from operations 596,216 2,981,946
Interest received 185,976 161,993
Dividends received 10,499 10,499
Interest paid (84,098) (79,206)
Income taxes paid (136,045) (644,619)

Net cash flows from operating activities 572,548 2,430,613
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:

Acquisition of non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (102,935) (88,242)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 105,564 370,743
Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost (250,455) (1,636,124)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortized cost - 229,480
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (1,297,064) (2,756,761)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 338 5,330
Decrease in refundable deposits 1,390 9,312
Acquisition of intangible assets (26,320) (38,284)
Increase in other financial assets (3,002) (129)
Effect of initial consolidation of subsidiaries 448 -

Net cash used in investing activities (1,572,036) (3,904,675)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,485,000 -
Repayments of long-term borrowings (1,773,095) -
Increase in guarantee deposits received - 156
Payments of lease liabilities (34,100) (24,766)
Cash dividends paid (501,739) (1,249,536)

Net cash used in financing activities (823,934) (1,274,146)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 84,461 (1,694)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,738,961) (2,749,902)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period 4,746,867 7,496,769
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period $ 3,007,906 4,746,867
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Attachment IV 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

2024 Earnings Distribution 

Unit: NT$ 

Beginning balance of retained earnings  $  4,318,084,816 

 Add: Net Profit after Tax  1,713,825,190 

  Add: Changes in actuarial gains and losses for 2024  35,070,737 

Less: legal reserve     (174,889,593) 

 Distributable surplus for the period:     1,574,006,334 

Accumulated distributable surplus for the period  5,892,091,150 

   

Distribution items:   

 Cash dividends - NT$3 per share     (627,174,072) 

   

Undistributed earnings at the end of the period     5,264,917,078 

   

Notes: 

1. The distribution of earnings for the current year is proposed to be made first from the 

distributable earnings after tax in 2024. 

2. To fund the Company’s need for operating capital, earnings for the first half of 2024 are not 

distributed. 

 

 

Tie-Min Chen, Chairperson of the Board 

Shao-Pin Ru, CEO 

Chia-Li Huang, Chief Accounting Officer 
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Attachment V 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

Comparison Table of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation 

Before and After Amendment 

Original Articles Articles After Amendment 
Reasons for 

Amendments 

Article 19: 

If the Company makes a profit (profit is 

defined as income before tax less 

distribution of employees' compensation 

and directors' compensation) in a year, no 

less than 3% shall be set aside as 

employees' compensation and no more 

than 3% shall be set aside as directors' 

remuneration. 

However, if the Company still has 

accumulated losses, the Company shall 

retain the amount to offset such losses in 

advance and then provide for the 

employees' compensation and directors' 

remuneration in proportion to the 

aforementioned amounts. 

The distribution shall be made in the form 

of cash or stocks for employees, but only 

in the form of cash for the directors. 

Employees entitled to receive the said 

stock or cash may include the employees 

of the Company’s subordinate companies 

who meet certain requirements. 

Proposals of distributions to employees, 

directors and supervisors shall be taken to 

the shareholders' meeting for approval 

after the resolution is reached by a 

majority of the Board with two thirds in 

attendance. 

Article 19: 

If the Company makes a profit (profit is 

defined as income before tax less 

distribution of employees' compensation 

and directors' compensation) in a year, no 

less than 3% shall be set aside as 

employees' compensation and no more 

than 3% shall be set aside as directors' 

remuneration. 

However, if the Company still has 

accumulated losses, the Company shall 

retain the amount to offset such losses in 

advance and then provide for the 

employees' compensation and directors' 

remuneration in proportion to the 

aforementioned amounts. 

The amount of employee compensation 

mentioned in the preceding paragraph shall 

allocate no less than 0.5% of the 

aforementioned profits for distribution to 

non-executive employees. The distribution 

shall be made in the form of cash or stocks 

for employees, but only in the form of cash 

for the directors. Employees entitled to 

receive the said stock or cash may include 

the employees of the Company’s 

subordinate companies who meet certain 

requirements. 

Proposals of distributions to employees, 

directors and supervisors shall be taken to 

the shareholders' meeting for approval 

after the resolution is reached by a 

majority of the Board with two thirds in 

attendance. 

In accordance with the 

amendment to Article 

14 of the Securities 

and Exchange Act. 
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Original Articles Articles After Amendment 
Reasons for 

Amendments 

Article 22: 

The Articles of Incorporation were 

established on July 2, 1974.  

The first amendment was made on 

December 8, 1976. 

． 

． 

The forty-third amendment was made on 

June 8, 2022.  

The forty-fourth amendment was made on 

June 6, 2023. 

The forty-fifth amendment was made on 

May 30, 2024. 

Article 22: 

The Articles of Incorporation were 

established on July 2, 1974.  

The first amendment was made on 

December 8, 1976. 

． 

． 

The forty-third amendment was made on 

June 8, 2022.  

The forty-fourth amendment was made on 

June 6, 2023. 

The forty-fifth amendment was made on 

May 30, 2024. 

The forty-sixth amendment was made on 

May 28, 2025. 

Addition of amendment 

date. 
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Attachment VI 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

List of Candidates for Directors and Independent Directors  

Candidate 

Categories 

Name of 

Candidate 

Education and Working 

Experience 
Current Position 

Number 

of Shares 

Held 

Director Tie-Min Chen Hon Honorary 

Doctorate in 

Management, National 

Sun Yat-sen University 

BS in Engineering, 

National Cheng Kung 

University 

President, Yageo Corp 

Founder & Chairperson, 

YAGEO Corp. 

Chairperson, Tong 

Hsing Electronic 

Industries Ltd 

Chairperson, Advanced 

Power Electronics Corp. 

Chairperson, XSemi 

Corporation 

Chairperson, Kuo-Shin 

Investment Ltd 

Vice Chairperson, uPI 

semiconductor corp. 

Chairperson, TMC 

Family Heritage 

9,559,057 

Director Multifield 

Investment Inc. 

Representative: 

Hsi-Hu Lai 

Bachelor’s Degree in 

Department of 

Economics, Soochow 

University 

Finance Department, 

Far East Group 

Vice President / Chief of 

Staff/ Chairperson, Tong 

Hsing Electronic Ind., 

Ltd. 

Chairperson, Kingpak 

Technology 

Vice Chairperson, Tong 

Hsing Electronic 

Industries, Ltd. 

Chairperson, Tong 

Hsing Enterprise Corp. 

 

72,638 

Director Huan Tai Co., 

Ltd. 

Representative: 

Jia-Li Huang 

Bachelor degree in 

Public Finance, National 

Chung Hsing 

University. 

Junior Manager, 

Advance Engineering 

(B.V.I.) Co., Ltd. 

Department of Finance, 

Tuntex Incorporation 

Vice President, Tong 

Hsing Electronic Ind., 

Ltd. 

CFO, Kingpak 

Technology 

COO & CFO, Tong 

Hsing Electronic 

Industries, Ltd. 

CFO, XSemi 

Corporation 

 

327,238 
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Candidate 

Categories 

Name of 

Candidate 

Education and Working 

Experience 
Current Position 

Number 

of Shares 

Held 

Director Huan Tai Co., 

Ltd. 

Representative: 

Pen-Chi Chen 

Accounting, Fu Jen 

Catholic University 

Audit Manager, 

PricewaterhouseCoopers 

Vice President, Kaimei 

Electronic Corporation  

Director Representative, 

Kaijet Technology 

International 

Corporation 

Director Representative, 

Ralec Technology 

(H.K.) Ltd.  

Director Representative, 

Mu Yeh Wen Investment 

Corp. 

Supervisor, Ralec 

Trading (KUNSHAN) 

Limited 

Supervisor, Ralec 

Technology 

(KUNSHAN) Limited 

Supervisor of Hunan 

Ralec Electronic Tech 

Co., Ltd 

Director Representative, 

ASJ Holdings Pte 

Limited. 

Director Representative, 

ASJ Pte. Limited. 

Director Representative, 

Teapo Electronic (Hong 

Kong) Corp. 

327,238 

Director San Tai 

Investment 

Ltd. 

Representative: 

Shao-Chiao 

Chen 

BS, Economics, 

University of 

Pennsylvania 

Senior Associate Vice 

President, Yageo 

Corporation 

Director, Global Testing 

Corporation 

2,036,000 

Director Shi Hen 

Enterprise 

Limited 

Representative: 

Shu-Chen Tsai 

Catholic Sheng Kung 

Girls' High School 

Chairperson and 

President, Hsin Bung 

Co., Ltd. 

Chairperson and 

President, Hsin Bung 

Co., Ltd. 

Director Representative, 

YAGEO Corp. 

8,838 

Independent 

Director 

Ta-Sheng Chiu Master of Economics, 

National Chengchi 

University 

B.S. in Statistics, 

National Cheng Kung 

University 

Senior Vice President, 

Merchant Banking 

President, Moldavit 

International Co., Ltd. 

Independent Director, 

uPI semiconductor corp. 

0 
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Candidate 

Categories 

Name of 

Candidate 

Education and Working 

Experience 
Current Position 

Number 

of Shares 

Held 

Division, Taishin 

Securities Co., Ltd. 

Vice President, 

Financial Markets 

Division, Taishin 

International 

Commercial Bank 

Vice President, 

Financial Transactions 

Division, British 

Standard Chartered 

Bank 

Associate Vice 

President, Foreign 

Exchange Trading 

Division, American 

Express Bank 

Independent 

Director 

Shien-Hua 

Huang 

Doctoral Research in 

Civil and Commercial 

Law, Tsinghua 

University, Beijing 

Institute of Finance, 

National Chengchi 

University 

Executive 

Commissioner, 

Financial Supervisory 

Commission, Executive 

Yuan 

Director, Taipei 

Exchange 

Chairperson and 

General Manager, Barits 

Securities Co., Ltd. 

Executive Vice 

President, Capital 

Securities Corporation 

Chairperson, Grand 

Fortune Securities 

Financial Group 

Executive V.P., Taiwan 

M&A and Private 

Equity Council 

Director, Tatung 

Company 

0 

Independent 

Director 

Chung-Hou Tai Master's Degree, 

Institute of Management 

Science, Tamkang 

University 

Bachelor's Degree in 

Control Engineering, 

National Chiao Tung 

University 

Chairperson, InveStar 

Capital, Inc 

Co-founder, Acer Inc. 

Chairperson, Investar 

Corporation 

Chairperson, Xuyang 

Financial Consulting 

Co., Ltd. 

Chairperson, Heyang 

Investment Co., Ltd. 

Chairperson, Zettabyte 

Holdings, INC. 

Director, DIGITIMES 

0 
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Candidate 

Categories 

Name of 

Candidate 

Education and Working 

Experience 
Current Position 

Number 

of Shares 

Held 

Inc 

Director, Global Testing 

Corporation 

Director, Lumens 

Digital Optics Inc. 

Director, EVEST 

Corporation 

Director, Wafer Works 

Corporation 

Director, Knowledge 

Broadcasting 

International Co., Ltd. 

Director, Chief Telecom 

Inc. 

Director, Wafer Works, 

DIGITIMES 

Director, IC 

Broadcasting Company 

Limited 

Director, 21ViaNet 

Group, Inc. 

Independent Director, 

ASUSTek Computer 

Inc. 

Independent Director, 

VNET Group, Inc. 

Note: Whether the aforementioned candidate for independent director has consecutively served three 

terms as an independent director of the Company: None. 
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Attachment VII 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

Details of the Positions Held by the 19th Board of Directors 

Title Name Current position in other companies 

Director Tie-Min Chen Founder & Chairperson, YAGEO Corp.  

Chairperson, Advanced Power Electronics 

Corp. 

Chairperson, XSemi Corporation  

Chairperson, Kuo-Shin Investment Ltd  

Vice Chairperson, uPI semiconductor corp.  

Chairperson, TMC Family Heritage 

Director Multifield Investment Inc 

Representative: Hsi-Hu Lai 

Chairperson, Tong Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. 

Director Huan Tai Co., Ltd. 

Representative: Jia-Li Huang 

CFO, XSemi Corporation 

Director Huan Tai Co., Ltd. 

Representative: Pen-Chi Chen 

Vice President, Kaimei Electronic Corporation  

Director Representative, Kaijet Technology 

International Corporation 

Director Representative, Ralec Technology 

(H.K.) Ltd.  

Director Representative, Mu Yeh Wen 

Investment Corp. 

Supervisor, Ralec Trading (KUNSHAN) 

Limited 

Supervisor, Ralec Technology (KUNSHAN) 

Limited 

Supervisor of Hunan Ralec Electronic Tech 

Co., Ltd 

Director Representative, ASJ Holdings Pte 

Limited. 

Director Representative, ASJ Pte. Limited. 

Director Representative, Teapo Electronic 

(Hong Kong) Corp. 

Director San Tai Investment Ltd. 

Representative: Shao-Chiao Chen 

Director, Global Testing Corporation 

Director Shi Hen Enterprise Limited 

Representative: Shu-Chen Tsai 
Chairperson and President, Hsin Bung Co., 

Ltd. 

Director Representative, Yageo Corporation 

Independent 

Director 

Ta-Sheng Chiu President, Moldavit International Co., Ltd. 

Independent Director, uPI semiconductor corp. 

Independent 

Director 

Shien-Hua Huang Chairperson, Grand Fortune Securities 

Financial Group 

Executive V.P., Taiwan M&A and Private 

Equity Council 

Director, Tatung Company 



 

- 39 - 

Title Name Current position in other companies 

Independent 

Director 

Chung-Hou Tai Chairperson, Investar Corporation 

Chairperson, Xuyang Financial Consulting 

Co., Ltd. 

Chairperson, Heyang Investment Co., Ltd. 

Chairperson, Zettabyte Holdings, INC. 

Director, DIGITIMES Inc 

Director, Global Testing Corporation 

Director, Lumens Digital Optics Inc. 

Director, EVEST Corporation 

Director, Wafer Works Corporation 

Director, Knowledge Broadcasting 

International Co., Ltd. 

Director, Chief Telecom Inc. 

Director, Wafer Works, DIGITIMES 

Director, IC Broadcasting Company Limited 

Director, 21ViaNet Group, Inc. 

Independent Director, ASUSTek Computer 

Inc. 

Independent Director, VNET Group, Inc. 
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Appendix I 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings 

Article 1: Unless otherwise required by laws and regulations and the Articles of Incorporation, the 

convening of shareholders' meetings and the proceedings of the Company shall be 

governed by these Rules. 

Article 2: The shareholders' meeting shall be held at the Company's location or at a place suitable 

for the shareholders' meeting; the meeting shall commence no earlier than 9:00 a.m. and 

no later than 3:00 p.m., and the place and time of the meeting shall be held with due 

regard to the opinions of the independent directors. 

When the Company holds a video shareholders' meeting, the Company shall not be 

restricted from holding the aforementioned meeting. 

Article 3: The Company shall specify in its shareholders' meeting notices the time during which 

shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, the place to register for attendance, 

and other matters for attention. 

The registration of shareholders in the preceding paragraph shall be processed at least 30 

minutes prior to the commencement of the meeting; the registration desk shall be clearly 

marked and adequate and appropriate personnel shall be assigned to handle the 

registration. 

The video conference of the shareholders' meeting shall be accepted at the video 

conference platform of the shareholders' meeting 30 minutes prior to the commencement 

of the meeting, and the shareholders who have completed the registration shall be 

deemed to attend the shareholders' meeting in person. 

If a shareholders' meeting is held by video conference, shareholders who wish to attend 

by video should register with the Company two days prior to the shareholders' meeting. 

If a shareholders' meeting is held by video conference, the Company shall upload the 

meeting booklet, annual report and other relevant information to the shareholders' 

meeting video conference platform at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting 

and continue to disclose them until the end of the meeting. 

Article 4: If the shareholders' meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the Chair of the 

meeting shall be the Chairperson of the Board of Directors. If the Chairperson of the 

Board of Directors is absent from office or is unable to exercise his or her duties for any 

reason, the Vice Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall act as the chair of the 

meeting; if the Vice Chairperson of the Board of Directors is also absent from office or 

is unable to exercise his or her duties for any reason, the Chairperson of the Board of 

Directors shall designate a Director to act as the chair of the meeting. If the Chairperson 

of the Board of Directors has not appointed a proxy, the Board of Directors shall appoint 

a proxy from among themselves. 



 

- 41 - 

The Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall preside personally at the shareholders' 

meetings called by the Board of Directors, and at least one representative of a majority 

of the Board of Directors and at least one member of each functional committee shall be 

present, and the attendance shall be recorded in the minutes of the shareholders' meetings. 

If a meeting is called by a person other than the Board of Directors, the Chairperson of 

the meeting shall be that person. If there are two or more persons having the convening 

right, the chair of the meeting shall be elected from among themselves. 

The Company shall appoint a lawyer, an accountant or a related person to attend the 

shareholders' meeting. 

Article 5: The entire meeting of shareholders shall be continuously recorded and videotaped and 

shall be kept for at least one year. However, if a lawsuit is filed by a shareholder in 

accordance with Article 189 of the Company Act, it shall be kept until the end of the 

lawsuit. 

If a shareholders' meeting is held by video conference, the entire video conference shall 

be continuously and uninterruptedly recorded and videotaped, and shall be properly 

preserved during the period of continuity. 

Article 6: Attendance at shareholders' meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of shares. 

The number of shares present shall be calculated on the basis of the number of shares 

reported in the sign-in book or the attendance card and the video conference platform, 

plus the number of shares for which the voting rights are exercised by written or 

electronic means. 

At the appointed meeting time, the chair of the meeting shall immediately announce the 

meeting in accordance with the legal procedures and announce the number of non-voting 

shares and the number of shares present at the same time; provided, however, that if the 

shareholders representing more than half of the total number of issued shares are not 

present, the chair of the meeting may announce an adjournment of the meeting for a 

maximum of two times, and the total time of the adjournment shall not exceed one hour. 

If, after two adjournments, there is still a shortage of shareholders representing more than 

one-third of the total number of outstanding shares, a fictitious resolution may be made 

in accordance with Article 175(1) of the Company Act. If, before the end of the meeting, 

the number of shares represented by the shareholders present reaches more than half of 

the total number of outstanding shares, the chairperson may re-submit the fictitious 

resolution made to the shareholders' meeting for a vote in accordance with Article 174 

of the Company Act. 

Article 7: If a shareholders' meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the agenda shall be set 

by the Board of Directors, and the relevant motions (including temporary motions and 

amendments to original motions) shall be voted on a case-by-case basis, and the meeting 

shall proceed in accordance with the scheduled agenda, which cannot be changed without 

a resolution of the shareholders' meeting. 
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The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders' 

meeting convened by a party with the power to convene that is not the Board of Directors. 

The chair of the meeting shall not adjourn the meeting without a resolution before the 

agenda of the shareholders' meeting (including the provisional motion) has been 

concluded. If the chair of a shareholders' meeting violates the rules of procedure and 

adjourns the meeting, other members of the Board of Directors shall promptly assist the 

shareholders present in accordance with the legal procedures and elect a chairperson with 

the consent of a majority of the shareholders present to continue the meeting. 

No discussion or vote will be taken on a motion that is not a motion. If the chair believes 

that the discussion for a proposal has reached a level where a vote may be called the chair 

may make an announcement to end such discussion and call for a vote. 

After the meeting is adjourned, the shareholders shall not elect another chair to resume 

such meeting at the same location or seek an alternative venue. 

Article 8: Before the attending shareholder speaks, he/she must fill out a speaker's slip with the 

shareholder's account number (or attendance card number), the account name and the 

speech subject, and the chair (or his/her designee) shall determine the order of his/her 

speech and call out his/her names in order before they are allowed to speak. 

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not actually 

speak shall be deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech does not 

correspond to the subject given on the speaker's slip, the spoken content shall prevail. 

Except with the consent of the chair, each shareholder (including natural and legal 

persons) shall speak once on the same motion, and each time shall not exceed 2 minutes, 

provided that the Chairperson may stop a shareholder from speaking if he/she violates 

the rules or exceeds the scope of the question. When an attending shareholder is speaking, 

other shareholders may not speak or interrupt unless they have sought and obtained the 

consent of the chair and the shareholder who has the floor; the chair shall stop any 

violation. 

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a 

shareholders' meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the 

same proposal. After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in 

person or direct relevant personnel to respond. 

Article 9: If a shareholders' meeting is convened by video conference, shareholders participating 

by video shall be allowed to ask questions by text on the video conference platform after 

the chair announces the meeting and before the meeting is adjourned, and the number of 

questions per motion shall not exceed one, and each time shall be limited to 200 words, 

not subject to Article 8. If the aforesaid question does not violate the regulations or is 

within the scope of the motion, it is appropriate to disclose the question on the video 

conference platform of the shareholders' meeting for public information. 

Article 10: The voting of the motion shall be calculated based the number of shares. 
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With respect to resolutions of shareholders' meetings, the number of shares held by a 

shareholder with no voting rights shall not be calculated as part of the total number of 

issued shares. A shareholder shall not vote at a meeting if he/she has an interest in the 

matter that would be detrimental to the Company's interests, and shall not exercise his/her 

voting rights on behalf of another shareholder. 

The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the preceding 

paragraph shall not be calculated as part of the voting rights represented by attending 

shareholders. 

With the exception of a trust enterprise or a shareholder services agent approved by the 

competent securities authority, when one person is concurrently appointed as proxy by 

two or more shareholders, the voting rights represented by that proxy may not exceed 

three percent of the voting rights represented by the total number of issued shares. If that 

percentage is exceeded, the voting rights in excess of that percentage shall not be 

included in the calculation. 

Article 11: A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the shares 

are restricted shares or are deemed to be non-voting shares pursuant to Paragraph 2 of 

Article 179 of the Company Act. 

When the Company calls a shareholders' meeting, the Company shall exercise its voting 

rights by electronic means and in writing. When voting rights are exercised by 

correspondence or electronic means, the method of exercise shall be specified in the 

shareholders meeting notice. Shareholders who exercise their voting rights in writing or 

electronically are considered to be present in person at the shareholders' meeting. 

However, the extemporary motion and the amendment to the original motion at that 

shareholders' meeting shall be deemed to be abstained. The expression of intent is 

governed by Article 177-2 of the Company Act. 

Except as otherwise provided under the Company Act and the Company's Articles of 

Incorporation, a resolution shall be adopted with the approval of more than one-half of 

the votes of the shareholders present. At the time of a vote, for each proposal, the chair 

or a person designated by the chair shall first announce the total number of voting rights 

represented by the attending shareholders, followed by a poll of the shareholders. After 

the conclusion of the meeting, on the same day it is held, the results for each proposal, 

based on the numbers of votes for and against and the number of abstentions, shall be 

entered into the MOPS. 

If a shareholder proposes a motion or an amendment or a substitute to an original motion, 

the chair shall determine the order of voting together with the original motion. When any 

one among them is passed, the other proposals will then be deemed rejected, and no 

further voting shall be required. 

The chair shall designate the person(s) to monitor and count the votes for the motion, 

provided that the monitoring personnel shall be the shareholders of the Company. 
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Vote counting for shareholders meeting proposals or elections shall be conducted in 

public at the place of the shareholders' meeting. Immediately after vote counting has been 

completed, the results of the voting, including the statistical tallies of the numbers of 

votes, shall be announced on site at the meeting, and a record made of the vote.  

Article 12: When the Company convenes a shareholders' meeting by video conference, the 

shareholders participating by video shall vote on each motion and election motion 

through the video conference platform after the chairperson announces the opening of 

the meeting, and shall complete the voting before the chairperson announces the closing 

of the voting, and any delay shall be deemed as abstention. If the shareholders' meeting 

is convened by video conference, the chairperson shall announce the close of the voting 

and announce the voting and election results for a one-time vote count. 

When the Company convenes a video-assisted shareholders' meeting, shareholders who 

have registered to attend the shareholders' meeting by video in accordance with Article 

3 and wish to attend the physical shareholders' meeting in person shall deregister in the 

same manner as they registered two days prior to the shareholders' meeting; if they 

deregister after that time, they may attend the shareholders' meeting by video only. 

Those who exercise their voting rights by written or electronic means without revoking 

their intention and participate in the shareholders' meeting by video means may not 

exercise their voting rights on the original motion or propose amendments to the original 

motion or exercise their voting rights on the amendments to the original motion, except 

for extemporary motions. 

Article 13: In the event of an election of directors at the shareholders' meeting, the election results 

shall be announced on the spot, including the list of elected directors and the number of 

their election rights, as well as the list of unsuccessful directors and the number of 

election rights they received. 

The election ballot for the preceding election shall be kept in a safe place and preserved 

for at least one year. 

However, if a lawsuit is filed by a shareholder in accordance with Article 189 of the 

Company Act, it shall be kept until the end of the lawsuit. 

Article 14: Matters relating to the resolutions of a shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the 

meeting minutes. The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair of the 

meeting and a copy distributed to each shareholder within 20 days after the conclusion 

of the meeting. The production and distribution of the meeting minutes shall be done 

electronically, and the distribution of the minutes shall be done by means of 

announcements entered into the Market Observation Post System and shall be retained 

permanently for the duration of the Company's existence. 

If a shareholders' meeting is convened by video conference, the minutes of the meeting 

shall include, in addition to the matters required to be recorded in the preceding 

paragraph, the starting and ending time of the shareholders' meeting, the manner in which 
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the meeting is convened, the names of the chairperson and the minutes of the meeting, 

and the manner and circumstances under which the video conference platform or video 

participation may be obstructed due to natural disasters, events or other force majeure 

circumstances. 

In addition to the aforementioned provisions, the Company shall convene a video 

shareholders' meeting and shall include in the minutes of the meeting alternative 

measures for shareholders who have difficulties in participating in the shareholders' 

meeting by means of video. 

Article 15: The number of shares solicited by the requester, the number of shares represented by 

proxy, and the number of shares attended by shareholders in writing or electronically 

shall be clearly disclosed in the shareholders' meeting venue on the date of the 

shareholders' meeting in a statistical form prepared in accordance with the prescribed 

format; if the shareholders' meeting is held by video conference, the Company shall 

upload the aforementioned information to the video conference platform of the 

shareholders' meeting at least 30 minutes before the start of the meeting and continue to 

disclose it until the end of the meeting. 

When the Company convenes a video conference for shareholders, the total number of 

shares of shareholders present shall be disclosed on the video meeting platform when the 

meeting is announced. The same applies if the total number of shares and voting rights 

of shareholders present are counted at the meeting. 

Article 16: Staff at the shareholders' meetings shall wear ID badges or arm badges. The chair may 

direct the patrol personnel to assist in maintaining order in the meeting for the conduct 

of business, and the patrol personnel shall wear identification cards or armbands. 

Shareholders and non-shareholders at the meeting are subject to the chair's direction 

regarding the maintenance of order and the conduct of business. Any person who disrupts 

the conduct of the shareholders' meeting and does not comply with the request, shall be 

asked by the chair or the patrol personnel to leave the meeting. 

Article 17: When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time 

considerations. If a force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting 

temporarily suspended and announce a time when, in view of the circumstances, the 

meeting will be resumed. 

Article 18: If a shareholders' meeting is held by video conference, the Company shall disclose the 

voting results of each motion and election results on the video conference platform of 

the shareholders' meeting immediately after the close of voting in accordance with the 

regulations, and shall continue to disclose the results for at least 15 minutes after the 

meeting is adjourned by the chairperson. 

When the Company holds a video shareholders' meeting, the chair and the recorder shall 

be present at the same location, and the chair shall announce the address of such place at 

the time of the meeting. 
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Article 19: If a shareholders' meeting is held by video conference, the Company shall provide a 

simple connection test for shareholders before the meeting and provide relevant services 

immediately before and during the meeting to assist in handling technical problems of 

communication. 

If a shareholders' meeting is convened by video conference, the chairperson shall, at the 

time of announcing the meeting, separately announce that, except for the circumstances 

specified in Paragraph 4, Article 44-20 of the Guidelines Governing the Handling of 

Stock Issuances by Public Companies that do not require the adjournment or continuation 

of the meeting, if, before the chairperson announces the adjournment of the meeting, an 

obstacle to participation on the video conference platform or by video message occurs 

due to a natural disaster, an event or other force majeure that lasts for more than 30 

minutes, the date of the meeting shall be adjourned or renewed within five days, and the 

provisions of Article 182 of the Company Act shall not apply. 

In the event of an adjournment or renewal of a meeting, shareholders who have not 

registered to participate in the original shareholders' meeting by video shall not 

participate in the adjourned or renewed meeting. 

The number of shares, voting rights and voting rights exercised at the original 

shareholders' meeting shall be counted as the total number of shares, voting rights and 

voting rights of shareholders present at the adjourned or renewed meeting for those 

shareholders who have registered to attend the original shareholders' meeting by video 

and have completed reporting for the meeting, but have not attended the adjourned or 

reconvened meeting. When a shareholders' meeting is adjourned or reconvened in 

accordance with the second paragraph, there is no need to discuss and resolve again on 

the motions for which voting and vote counting have been completed and the voting 

results or the list of directors and supervisors elected have been announced. 

When the Company holds a video-assisted shareholders' meeting and the second 

paragraph cannot be renewed, if the total number of shares present still reaches the legal 

quota for the shareholders' meeting after deducting the number of shares present by video, 

the shareholders' meeting shall continue without any adjournment or re-convening in 

accordance with the second paragraph. 

In the event that a meeting shall be continued, the number of shares attended by 

shareholders participating in the meeting by way of video shall be counted as the total 

number of shares of shareholders present, but shall be deemed to be abstained for the 

purpose of all motions at that meeting. 

If the Company adjourns or reconvenes a meeting in accordance with the second 

paragraph, the Company shall comply with the provisions set forth in Paragraph 7, 

Article 44-20 of the Guidelines Governing the Handling of Stock Issued to Public 

Companies, and shall complete the relevant preliminaries in accordance with the date of 

the original shareholders' meeting and the provisions of each such Article. When the 
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Company holds a video shareholders' meeting, the Company shall provide appropriate 

alternative measures for shareholders who have difficulty attending the shareholders' 

meeting by video. 

Article 20: Any matters not covered by these rules and regulations shall be governed by the 

Company Law and related laws and regulations and the Company's Articles of 

Incorporation. The Rules and any amendments thereafter shall become effective upon 

resolution at the shareholders' meeting. 

The first amendment was made on June 8, 2022. 
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Appendix II 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

Articles of Incorporation (Before Amendment) 

Chapter 1 General 

Article 1: The Company shall be incorporated under the Company Act, and its name shall be Tong 

Hsing Electronic Industries, Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as Tong Hsing). Chinese name 

is 同欣電子工業股份有限公司. 

Article 2:  The scope of business of the Company shall be as follows: 

I. CC01070 Wireless Communication Mechanical Equipment Manufacturing 

II. F113070 Wholesale of Telecommunication Apparatus 

III. F213060 Retail Sale of Telecommunication Apparatus 

IV. CC01080 Electronics Components Manufacturing 

V. F119010 Wholesale of Electronic Materials 

VI. F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials 

VII. F401010 International Trade 

VIII. F601010 Intellectual Property Rights 

IX. JE01010 Rental and Leasing 

X. ZZ99999 All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except 

those that are subject to special approval 

Article 2-1: When necessary for its operation, the Company may provide endorsement, guarantee, 

or re-investment. The total amount of the Company’s re-investment shall not be subject 

to the restriction of not more than forty percent (40%) of the Company’s paid-up capital 

as provided in Article XIII of Company Act. 

Article 3: The Company shall have its head office in Taoyuan City, Taiwan, Republic of China, 

and shall be free, upon approval of government authorities in charge, to setup 

representative and branch offices at various locations within and without the territory of 

the Republic of China, wherever and whenever the Board of Directors deems it 

necessary or advisable to carry out any or all of its activities, including dissolution of 

branch offices. 

Article 4: Public announcements of the Company shall be made in accordance with the provisions 

of the Company Act and the regulations prescribed by the competent securities 

authorities. 

Chapter 2 Shares 

Article 5: The registered capital of the Company shall be NT$4,000,000,000, divided into 

400,000,000 common shares with a par value of NT$10 per share, and the Board of 

Directors are authorized to issue by increments. 

A total of 100,000,000 shares shall be set aside from the aforementioned common shares 

for the use as employee Stock Warrants, divided into 10,000,000 shares, and the Board 
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of Directors are authorized to issue by increments. 

If the issued subscription price of the Company is lower than the subscription warrant 

of employees of the closing price of common stock of Japanese companies, they can 

only be issued after obtaining the consent from more than two thirds of voting power of 

attending shares at shareholders' meeting to be attended by more than half shareholders 

representing the total number of issued shares. 

Article 6: The shares of the Company are registered shares. The share certificates shall be assigned 

with serial numbers and affixed with the signature or stamp of the director representing 

the Company. The share certificates shall be duly certified or authenticated by the bank 

which is competent to certify shares in accordance with the law before they are issued. 

The Company may issue registered shares without certificates, and such shares shall be 

registered with a central securities depository. 

Article 7: The Company's shares shall be handled according to the "Regulations Governing the 

Administration of Shareholder Service of Public Companies" prescribed by the 

competent authority. 

Article 8: No registration of transfer of shares shall be made within sixty days (60) prior to an 

annual shareholder meeting, nor within thirty days (30) prior to a special (extraordinary) 

shareholder meeting, nor within five (5) days prior to the record day on which dividend, 

bonus or other benefits is scheduled to be paid by the Company. 

Chapter 3 Shareholders' Meeting 

Article 9: Shareholders meetings shall be of two types: General meetings and Extraordinary 

meetings. General meetings shall be convened annually by the Board within six months 

of the end of each fiscal year. Extraordinary meetings shall be convened in accordance 

with the relevant laws, whenever necessary. 

The Company's shareholders' meetings shall be held by video conference or other means 

as announced by the Ministry of Economic Affairs. 

Article 10: Except as provided in the Company Act of the Republic of China, shareholders meetings 

may be held if attended by shareholders in person or by proxy representing more than 

one half of the total issued and outstanding capital stock of the Company, and 

resolutions shall be adopted at the meeting with the concurrence of a majority of the 

votes held by shareholders present at the meeting. 

Article 10-1: The Company shall withdraw public issuance after the proposal is adopted at the 

shareholders meeting. 

Article 11: Unless otherwise specified by the law, each shareholder of the Company shall be entitled 

to one vote for each share held. 

For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting 

by providing the proxy form issued by the Company and stating the scope of the proxy's 

authorization. When a person who acts as the proxy for two or more shareholders, the 
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number of voting power represented by him/her shall not exceed 3% of the total number 

of voting shares of the Company, otherwise, the portion of excessive voting power shall 

not be counted. 

Article 12: The Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall preside the shareholders meeting. In 

case the Chairperson of the Board of Directors is on leave or absent or cannot exercise 

his power and authority for any cause, the vice chairperson shall act on his behalf. In 

case there is no designation by the Chairperson, the Directors shall designate one of the 

directors to act on his behalf. In the absence of such a designation, the directors or the 

directors shall elect from among themselves an acting Chairperson of the Board of 

Directors. In the absence of such a designation, the directors or the directors shall elect 

from among themselves an acting Chairperson of the Board of Directors. If there are 

two or more persons having the convening right, the chair of the meeting shall be elected 

from among themselves. 

Article 12-1:  Resolutions adopted at a shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the 

meeting in accordance with Article 183 of Company Act. 

Chapter 4 Directors and the Audit Committee 

Article 13:  The Company shall have nine to eleven directors to be elected at the shareholders 

meeting by the shareholders from among the nominees listed in the roster of director 

candidates. The term of office for directors shall be three years. All of the directors are 

eligible for re-election. 

A spousal relationship or a familial relationship within the second degree of kinship may 

not exist among more than half of the directors. 

The Company shall have, among the aforementioned directors, at least three 

independent directors, and the number of independent directors shall be no less than 

one-fifth of the total number of the directors. 

Regulations governing the professional qualifications, restrictions on shareholdings and 

concurrent positions held, assessment of independence, methods of nomination and 

election, and other matters for compliance with respect to independent directors shall 

be prescribed by the competent authority. 

The election of directors (including independent directors) and supervisors at the 

Company is subject to the provisions of Company Act in that a candidate nomination 

system for directors and supervisors shall be adopted. Shareholders shall elect directors 

and supervisors from among the those listed in the slate of independent director 

candidates. Such system and related announcement shall company with the regulations 

stated in the Company Act, Securities and Exchange Act. 

Article 13-1: The Board of Directors is authorized to determine the salary for the Directors (including 

independent directors), taking into account the extent and value of the services provided 
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for the Remuneration Committee and the standards of the industry. 

The Company shall take out directors liability insurance with respect to liabilities 

resulting from exercising their duties during their terms of occupancy. 

The Company shall establish an Audit Committee in accordance with Article 14, 

paragraph 4 of the Securities and Exchange Act. The exercise of power by audit 

committee and independent directors and related matters shall be set forth in accordance 

with the rules and regulations of the TWSE or TPEx. 

Article 14: The directors shall organize a Board of Directors, at which at least two-thirds of the 

directors shall be present, and with the consent of a majority of the directors present, 

one of them shall be elected from among themselves as the Chairperson of the Board of 

Directors, and if necessary, one of them shall be elected from among themselves in the 

same manner as the Vice Chairperson of the Board of Directors. The Chairperson of the 

Board of Directors shall represent the Company and execute all business of the 

Company in accordance with the laws, the Articles of Incorporation, and the resolutions 

of the shareholders' meeting and the Board of Directors. 

Article 14-1: Unless otherwise specified in the Company Act, board meetings shall be convened and 

chaired by the Chairperson of the Board. When the Chairperson of the Board is on leave 

or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of chair, the chair shall appoint one of 

the directors to act in place of the chair, or, if there are no managing directors, one of 

the directors shall be appointed to act as chair. If no such designation is made by the 

chair, the directors shall select one person from among themselves to serve as chair. In 

case a director appoints another director to attend a meeting of the Board of Directors 

in his/her behalf, he/she shall, in each time, issue a written proxy and state therein the 

scope of authority with reference to the subjects to be discussed at the meeting. 

Article 14-2:  A notice of the reasons, time and place for convening a board meeting shall be given to 

each director and supervisor before 7 days before the meeting is convened. In 

emergency circumstances, however, a board meeting may be called on shorter notice. 

Meeting notices can be faxed or emailed instead of written notices. 

Each director shall attend the meeting of the board of directors in person. In case a 

meeting of the board of directors is held by video conference, then the directors taking 

part in such a video conference meeting shall be deemed to have attended the meeting 

in person. 

Article 15: The Board of Directors shall set up functional committees for auditing, remuneration, 

nomination, risk management or any other functions. Functional committees shall adopt 

an organizational charter to be approved by the Board of Directors. 

Chapter 5 Manager 

Article 16:  The Company has a general manager who shall be nominated by the Chairperson of the 

Board. The appointment, discharge, and remuneration shall comply with Article 29 of 
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the Company Act. 

Chapter 6 Accounting 

Article 17:  The Company’s fiscal year is from January 1st to December 31st of each year, and the 

final accounting report shall be processed at the end of a fiscal year. 

Article 18: At the end of each fiscal year, the Board of Directors prepares the following lists and 

submits them to the Audit Committee for review, and reports to the general shareholders' 

meeting for acceptance. 

I. Business report. 

II. Financial statements. 

III. Proposals of profit allotment or loss coverage. 

Article 19: If the Company makes a profit (profit is defined as income before tax less distribution 

of employees' compensation and directors' compensation) in a year, no less than 3% 

shall be set aside as employees' compensation and no more than 3% shall be set aside 

as directors' remuneration. 

However, if the Company still has accumulated losses, the Company shall retain the 

amount to offset such losses in advance and then provide for the employees' 

compensation and directors' remuneration in proportion to the aforementioned amounts. 

The distribution shall be made in the form of cash or stocks for employees, but only in 

the form of cash for the directors. 

Employees entitled to receive the said stock or cash may include the employees of the 

Company’s subordinate companies who meet certain requirements. 

Proposals of distributions to employees, directors and supervisors shall be taken to the 

shareholders' meeting for approval after the resolution is reached by a majority of the 

Board with two thirds in attendance. 

Article 19-1: When allocating the earnings for each fiscal year, the Company must pay tax and make 

up for the accumulated losses first, also share the remaining profit as follows:  

I. Set aside 10% of the earnings as legal reserve. However, when the legal reserve 

amount equals to the paid-in capital of the Company, it is not subject or such 

restriction. 

II. Set aside or reverse special reserve in accordance with the relevant laws and 

regulations. 

III. Pay dividends or bonuses for an amount not less than 30% of the amount net of the 

legal reserve and special reserve as stipulated in the preceding paragraph and the 

cash dividends shall account for at least 50% of the current year's total dividends. 

The Board of Director shall prepare the earnings distribution proposal for the 

resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting. However, if the earnings distribution 

proposal is for the distribution of dividend and bonus in cash entirely or partially, 

it shall be resolved by the Board of Directors with the attendance of more than two-

thirds of the directors and the consent of the majority of attending directors; also, 
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it shall be reported in the shareholders’ meeting. 

The Company's dividend policy is based on the current and future development plans, 

consideration of the investment environment, capital requirements, domestic and 

international competition, and the interests of shareholders, etc. The Board of Directors 

shall prepare a resolution to be approved by the shareholders in a meeting. 

If the Company has no loss, the Board of Directors, with two-thirds of the directors 

present and a majority of the directors present, shall issue all or a portion of the legal 

reserve and the capital surplus as provided in Paragraph 1, Article 241 of the Company 

Act to the shareholders in cash in proportion to their original shares and report the same 

to the shareholders' meeting. 

Article 19-2: Distributions from the Company's earnings or loss can be made after the end of each 

semi-annual fiscal year. 

When the Company distributes earnings for the first half of the fiscal year in accordance 

with the preceding paragraph, the Company shall estimate and retain the amount of 

taxable contributions, offsetting losses, compensation to employees, and reserve from 

earnings. However, this limit does not apply when the legal reserve has reached the 

amount of paid-in capital. 

The first proposal for distribution of earnings or offsetting losses should be submitted 

to the Audit Committee for review and approval, taking into account the current year's 

operating conditions and cash flows, together with the business report and financial 

statements. If the distribution of earnings is made in the form of new shares, the Board 

of Directors shall submit a resolution to the shareholders' meeting in accordance with 

Article 240 of the Company Act. 

Article 20: The Company intends to transfer the shares repurchased by the Company to employees 

in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, and if it intends to transfer them 

to employees at a price lower than the average price of the actual repurchased shares, 

then it can be implemented after the consent of more than two-thirds of the shareholders 

who represent more than half of the total number of issued shares. 

Chapter 7 Supplementary 

Article 21: Any other matters not set forth in the Articles of Incorporation shall be dealt with in 

accordance with the Company Act. 

Article 22: The Articles of Incorporation were established on July 2, 1974. 

The first amendment was made on December 8, 1976. 

The second amendment was made on April 19, 1977. 

The third amendment was made on April 15, 1978. 

The fourth amendment was made on May 6, 1983. 

The fifth amendment was made on July 18, 1984. 

The sixth amendment was made on February 27, 1985. 

The seventh amendment was made on December 27, 1985. 



 

- 54 - 

The eighth amendment was made on April 7, 1986. 

The ninth amendment was made on August 7, 1986. 

The tenth amendment was made on September 15, 1988. 

The eleventh amendment was made on June 3, 1989. 

The twelfth amendment was made on December 6, 1989. 

The thirteenth amendment was made on September 26, 1990. 

The fourteenth amendment was made on January 3, 1991. 

The fifteenth amendment was made on December 5,1991. 

The sixteenth amendment was made on June 10, 1992. 

The seventeenth amendment was made on May 10, 1994. 

The eighteenth amendment was made on June 30, 1995. 

The nineteenth amendment was made on May 21, 1996. 

The twentieth amendment was made on July 14, 1997. 

The twenty-first amendment was made on October 6, 1997. 

The twenty-second amendment was made on June 24, 1999. 

The twenty-third amendment was made on June 3, 2000. 

The twenty-fourth amendment was made on June 26, 2001. 

The twenty-fifth amendment was made on June 7, 2002. 

The twenty-sixth amendment was made on June 21, 2005. 

The twenty-seventh amendment was made on June 20, 2006. 

Twenty-eighth amendment was made on December 21, 2006. 

The twenty-ninth amendment was made on May 15, 2007. 

The thirty amendment was made on May 15, 2007. 

The thirty-first amendment was made on June 19, 2008. 

The thirty second amendment was made on June 26, 2009. 

The thirty-third amendment was made on April 28, 2010. 

The thirty-fourth amendment was made on June 19, 2012. 

The thirty-fifth amendment was made on June 19, 2013. 

The thirty-sixth amendment was made on June 18, 2015. 

The thirty-seventh amendment was made on June 16, 2016. 

The thirty-eighth amendment was made on June 16, 2017. 

The thirty-ninth amendment was made on June 15, 2018. 

The fortieth amendment was made on June 21, 2019. 

The forty-first amendment was made on February 14, 2020. 

The forty-second amendment was made on June 5, 2020. 

The forty-third amendment was made on June 8, 2022. 

The forty-fourth amendment was made on June 6, 2023. 

The forty-fifth amendment was made on May 30, 2024. 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

Tie-Min Chen, Chairperson of the Board 
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Appendix III 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

Rules of Procedures for the Election of Directors 

 

Article 1: Unless otherwise provided in the Company Act or the Articles of Association of this 

Company, the directors (Including independent directors) of this Company shall be elected 

in accordance with the rules specified herein. 

Article 2: Election of directors (including independent directors) the Company shall be held at the 

shareholders’ meeting. The Company shall prepare ballots and add the number of voting 

rights. 

Article 3: In the election of the Company’s directors (including independent directors), the names of 

the electors shall be replaced by the shareholder attendance numbers. 

Article 4: The election of the directors (including independent directors) at the Company is subject to 

the provisions of Article 192-1 of the Company Act in that a candidate nomination system 

shall be adopted. 

Article 5: In the election of the Company's directors (including independent directors), each share has 

the same voting rights as the number of persons to be elected, and one person may be elected 

collectively or several persons may be distributed. The election of independent directors 

and non-independent directors shall be held concurrently, provided that the number of 

independent directors and non-independent directors elected are calculated separately. 

Article 6: In the election of the Company's directors (including independent directors), those receiving 

ballots representing the highest numbers of voting rights will be elected sequentially 

according to their respective numbers of votes. When two or more persons receive the same 

number of votes, thus exceeding the specified number of positions, they shall draw lots to 

determine the winner, with the chair drawing lots on behalf of any person not in attendance. 

Article 7: Before the election begins, the chair shall appoint a number of persons with shareholder 

status to perform the respective duties of vote monitoring and counting personnel. 

Article 8: The ballot cabinets (boxes) used for the election shall be prepared by the Company and 

shall be publicly checked by the scrutineer before voting commences. 

Article 9: A ballot is invalid under any of the following circumstances: 

(I) Ballots not put in the ballot box. 

(II) Those who do not use voting votes prepared by the Company's Board of Directors or 

those who have the right to convene. 

(III) A blank ballot is placed in the ballot box. 

(IV) Where the candidate's name filled in in the ballot is inconsistent with that on the list 

of candidates for directors. 

(V) Other words or marks are entered in addition to the candidate's account name and the 

number of voting rights allotted. 
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(VI) The writing is unclear and indecipherable or has been altered. 

Article 10: Ballots shall be counted at the spot upon completion of casting the ballots, and the elected 

directors (including independent directors) shall be announced by the chair. 

Article 11: These Rules shall become effective from the date they are approved at the Meeting. The 

same applies in case of revision. 

Article 12: This procedure was established on June 21, 2019. 

The first amendment was made on July 7, 2021. 

 

 



 

- 57 - 

Appendix IV 

TONG HSING ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES, LTD. 

Shareholding of Directors 

 

I. The Company's registered capital amount is NT$2,090,580,240, with a total of 209,058,024 

shared. 

II. The rules are implemented pursuant to Article 26 of the Securities and Exchange Act and the 

number of shares of the directors and supervisors of the Company. 

(1) The total number of shares held by all non-independent directors of the Company shall not 

be less than 12,000,000 shares of the Company's issued shares. 

(2) The Company has set up an Audit Committee in accordance with the law, so there is no 

application of the number of shares that should be held by the supervisor. 

III. The number of shares held by the directors of the Company as of the current general meeting 

of shareholders at the closing date of the transfer of shareholders is as follows: 

Titles Name 
Shares held on the ex-

dividend date 
Ownership (%) Remark 

Chairperson Tie-Min Chen 9,559,057 4.57%  

Director 
Multifield Investment Inc. 

Representative: Hsi-Hu Lai 
72,638 0.03%  

Director 
Kaimei Electronic Corporation 

Representative: Shu-Hui Chen 
9,754,774 4.67%  

Director 
Shi Hen Enterprise Limited 

Representative: Shu-Chen Tsai 
8,838 0.00%  

Director 
Huan Tai Co., Ltd. 

Representative: Chia-Li Huang 
327,238  0.16%  

Director 
Huan Tai Co., Ltd. 

Representative: Pen-Chi Chen 

Independent 

Director 
Chin-Tsai Chen 0 0.00%  

Independent 

Director 
Ta-Sheng Chiu 0 0.00%  

Independent 

Director 
Yueh-Hsiang Tsai 0 0.00%  

Number of shares held by all directors 19,722,545 9.43%  

  

http://www.canner.org.tw/GoWeb/include/index.php?Page=5-3&Member01=B0094
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Appendix V 

Acceptance of Proposals and Nominations Submitted by Shareholders: 

Explanatory Notes: 

I. According to Article 172-1 and 192-1 of the Company Act, a shareholder who holds 

1% or more of the total issued and outstanding shares may submit one proposal in 

writing to the Company to be discussed at the general shareholders meeting. 

II. Proposals are limited to one item and three hundred characters (including text and 

punctuation). Any proposal with more than one item or three hundred characters 

will not be included in the proposal. The shareholder making the proposal shall be 

present in person or by proxy at the regular shareholders meeting and take part in 

discussion of the proposal. 

III. Shareholder proposals must be submitted during the period from March 17, 2025 

to March 26, 2025. As required by law, the Company has published the information 

regarding shareholder proposals on the MOPS website. 

IV.  The number of director candidates nominated shall be limited to nine directors 

(including three independent directors). If the number of nominees exceeds the 

number of directors or independent directors to be elected, or if the nominees do 

not meet the legal requirements, they will not be included in the list of candidates. 

V. During the aforesaid period of receiving shareholders' proposals and nominations, 

except for the nomination of director candidates by the Board of Directors, the 

Company has not received any shareholders' proposals or nominations. 

 

 


